Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Regular Meeting of April 3, 2019

A regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Consiois for the Village of Lemont was held
at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, April 3, 2019 in theosddloor Board Room of the Village Hall,
418 Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A.

Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Spinelli called the meeting to order 84.m. He then led the Pledge
of Allegiance.

. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present. Cunningham, Glomp, McGleam, O’ConnomialaZolecki, Spinelli
Absent: None

Community Development Director Jason Berry, ComtyuDevelopment
Manager Mark Herman, Consulting Planner Jamie &ateVillage Trustee Ron
Stapleton were also present.

Approval of Minutes — February 6, 2019 Meeting

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
approve the minutes from the February 6, 2019 megetith no changes. A voice
vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS

Chairman Spinelli welcomed the audience to the mgetHe then asked everyone in
the audience to stand and raise his/her right hatelthen administered the oath.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. 19-04 — 503 SINGER AVENUE VARIATION

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tiubl hearing.



Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
open the public hearing for Case 19-04. A voiceweas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said the appliddatthew Hennebry, is requesting
a variation to the UDO (Unified Development Ordinejto allow a front porch
addition to encroach into the required front yagtback. The applicant is planning
on to renovate and restore the residence withrgslasignificance and integrity.

The applicant is proposing a full restoration of thterior and exterior of the home
with a significant rear addition, porch additiondadetached garage. The home
currently does not meet the required front yartiask of 25 feet and the addition of a
front porch will encroach further into this requirent.

Currently there is a front wood porch that is flwath the front wall of the home
which is being used as a stoop or landing rathear ghporch. In order to construct a
historic and traditional front porch there is nbatway but to encroach into the front
setback. Today the home sits 14.86 feet fronirtivé property line. The applicant
is proposing a front porch that will be approxiniatkl.8 feet from the front property
line. The uncovered stairs leading to the sidevasdkg Singer meet the minimum 3
foot setback requirement for steps in all yards.

Mrs. Tate stated the subject property is zoned Re#fyle-Family Preservation and
Infill District and it is located in the HistoriciBtrict. The existing lot will meet the
required lot size and width. Per the UDO the rempifront setback is 25 feet from
the property line to the principal structure. Téhera provision in the R-4A that
allows for a reduced front yard setback if 50%h&f block face is proven to have
lesser front setbacks. The subject property cthdd take the average setback for the
principal building on the two adjacent propertiddthough much of this block has
principal structure encroachments of less thare2h the two adjacent properties to
the subject property are vacant. If they are luathn they would need to meet the 25
foot front yard setback. She then showed otherdsoom the block that encroached
into the front yard setback. Mr. Hennebry is resjung to encroach into the front
yard setback by approximately 14 feet.

For the Standards for Variation you need to loothatUDO section that states the
request must be consistent with three standards &pproved. She then read
through those standards and staff comments, wheklpplicant meets all that are
applicable. The Comprehensive Plan classifiessitesas Infill Residential which
talks about redevelopment of older home sitesdbaiir over time and that
redevelopment will be consistent with the estalelisbharacter of these
neighborhoods. The Comprehensive Plan also talstan the “Our Home” section
about reinvesting in Lemont’s housing stock, enaging infill development, and



preserving architecturally and historically sigcéfnt buildings in the Historic
District.

Mrs. Tate said staff is recommending approval efftbnt yard setback
encroachment variation. Staff believes the addlitind renovation will enhance the
historic character of the property and districheTaddition of the front porch is
simple, minimal and appropriate for the style ahdracter of the home, while
furthering the goals of the Lemont 2030 ComprehenBian.

Chairman Spinelli asked how far will the front stdge from the front property line.

Mrs. Tate said the code states the front steps toeke three feet from the property
line and they are at least three feet.

Chairman Spinelli asked when is the Historic Prest@nn meeting.

Mrs. Tate stated it is April 1L It was scheduled for a previous meeting but thidy
not have a quorum.

Chairman Spinelli asked what happens if that mgegets cancelled again.

Mr. Herman, Community Development Manager, sawoiild go before the
Committee of the Whole, but they would like it to gefore the Historic Preservation
Committee before any official or final approval.

Chairman Spinelli clarified that even if the Viladoard approves i, if the Historic
Preservation Committee does not then the appliamiot do it.

Mrs. Tate said yes.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiortexrd any further questions for
staff. None responded. He then asked if the eppliwanted to make a presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Matt Hennebry thanked the Commission for their tinidnis house has been in his
family for a long time and he is thé& generation to own it. He has been researching
the house the past couple of years and could matinything. This has been
designed through conversation with his great andthas architect.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorerd any questions for the
applicant. None responded. He then asked if thhaeanyone in the audience that
wanted to ask questions or comment in regardsig@tiblic hearing.

Public Comment




None
Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to close plblic hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byniission Zolecki to close
the public hearing for Case 19-04. A voice votes vaken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheestions or comments from the
Plan Commission. None responded. He then catled motion for
recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees agpaiCase 19-04, 503 Singer
Avenue Variation. A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: Zolecki, Cunningham, O’Connor, McGleam, GlpRiahm, Spinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 19-04 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

B. 19-03 TIMBER RUN SUBDIVISION REZONING, PRELIMINARY PUD
AND PRELIMINARY PLAT

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tlubl hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Glomp to open
the public hearing for Case 19-03. A voice votea vaken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation




Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said Taylor Morrigblllinois is being represented
by Mark McLaughlin and are the contract purchasehe subject property. They are
seeking rezoning to R-5A Single-Family Detached Attdched Residential District,
a Preliminary PUD and Preliminary Plat of Subdwsi The purpose of the
requested zoning entitlements is to allow the adantbn of a 42 detached single-
family home and 52 unit duplex community. Staffesommending approval with
conditions.

The surrounding zoning to the north consists of &gle-Family Detached
Residential and to the south is R-1 Single-Fam#ydahed Residential and INT
Institutional. The west is vacant and to the &aB-4 Single-Family Residential.
The subject property was annexed to the Villagépl 10, 2017 for the Vistancia
subdivision. At that time it was zoned a combioatf R-4 Single-Family Detached
and R-5 Single-Family Attached Residential. Thst&cia project consisted of 102
acres with a total of 270 dwelling units dividetlonwo phases. Phase | was
approved for 67 single-family detached homes andiftgle-family attached homes.
Phase Il was approved for 81 single-family detadimties and 68 single-family
attached homes. The construction for Vistancia neeexmenced and final approval
was never applied for by the former developer.

The current purchaser of the subject propertyap@sing to develop the 69.18 acre
eastern portion of the Vistancia subdivision witkimilar lot and street design. A
part of the proposal requires rescinding the AntieraAgreement and replacing it
with a Developer’'s Agreement to be approved byilage Board. Taylor Morrison
is donating the western 28 acre parcel to the §@llaf Lemont in order to allow more
oversight over its future development potential.

Mrs. Tate stated the 94 dwelling units on approx@tya69 acres provides an overall
density of 1.4 units per acre, but the 28 acredut)4 is being donated to the
Village bringing the overall density to 2.3 unitsr@cre. The single-family homes
will be on the eastern portion with the duplexestmwestern portion. The detached
single-family homes will be two-story with a squdéoetage ranging between 2,400 sf
to 3,400 sf. The duplex homes will be designeddmommodate ranch and ranch
with loft styles ranging in square footage betw&g@00 sf and 2,400 sf. Taylor
Morrison’s single-family and duplexes in Timber Rwill be designed to meet the
Village’s residential design standards, including hewly adopted duplex standards.

There is an appropriate amount of open space aethaborhood park will be
constructed by the developer in the center of tdmemunity to be dedicated to the
Lemont Park District. The Park District will bevivived in the selection of the park
equipment and installer. Any leftover money thaind have been provided to the
park as an impact fee will be given back to théridis Access to Timber Run will be
provided via Timber Run Drive located on the noateportion of the subject
property. Public sidewalks will be constructedtighout the development to
encourage walkability and to create a connectedoamity.



Mrs. Tate said they did come before the Technieadi®&v Committee on October 3,
2018. At that time, the applicant presented a epnplan that included 80 single-
family lots in the R-5A zoning district. The TR@&dussed the proposal and
provided the applicant with comments. Following TRC, the applicant revised the
subdivision layout to request duplex homes alorty single-family detached homes.
On November 14, 2018, the revised plan was sahietd RC and comments were
provided to the applicant after the site plan cleawgh no major objections and the
applicant then moved forward with submitting anlaggpion. The applicant
requested a preliminary engineering and zoning W&@ew to be performed before
turning in the plans that are presented todaydewoto flush through any major
hurdles for the subject property. These prelimimaviews have both been provided
in the attachments.

A PUD does provided flexibility which is intendeal ‘tencourage development that is
more environmentally sensitive, economically vialaled aesthetically pleasing than
might otherwise be possible under strict adheréme¢ke underlying zoning district
standards”. One variation from the UDO is to pdava park site dedication and fee
in lieu and with the PUD they are providing a paitke dedication with a fully
constructed park site. Staff is recommending ayrdrof this as long as there is a
mutual agreement with the Park District. Anothleuirement is that the pavement
width for streets back-to-back curb is 30 feet @6deet right-of-way (ROW). They
are proposing 30 feet pavement width with 60 fe@¥¥R The proposed 60 foot
ROW is consistent with the prior approved singletifg subdivision and the Village
Engineer is okay with the request. Another is g a sidewalk throughout the
residential development. No sidewalk is propodedgTimberline Drive on Outlot
100 and 103. Staff recommends installing the sadlewr providing an escrow for a
future sidewalk. There are three requests thayapphe detention ponds. The first
is the dry detention shall have a depth of sixigditefeet which is greater than the
four feet requirement. The basin is proposedaad the backslope is 3:1. All of
these requests follow the approvals of the prevapmoved subdivision on the
subject property.

Mrs. Tate said the Standards for Rezoning are baiselde LaSalle Factors which
were established in 1957. She then read throwgfattiors and staff's analysis
which are listed in staff's report. Another anadythat they look at is consistency
with the Comprehensive Plan. The Plan designateartea as Contemporary
Neighborhood, which consists of mostly single-fandétached homes with some
single-family attached homes and multi-family horme®rporated throughout the
district. She then read the definition for Contenapy Neighborhood. Inthe Our
Homes section of the plan it talks about achiexdnd maintaining the right housing
mix. It consists of encouraging PUD'’s that comtairange of housing products,
more single-family attached housing in order tovte the opportunity for families
to live near each other at different stages of tineds and allow detached single-
family developments on smaller lots. The appligamroposing to utilize the
Village’s newly adopted R-5A zoning district thaasva result of the Lemont 2030



plan recommendation. She then read through the ethjxtives and talked about
how the proposed development will meet those olbest

There is one access off of Timberline Drive anda#fit study was performed with
the previous Vistancia approval. The Lemont Firetéttion District is satisfied with
the boulevard access point off of Timberline Driva.regards to landscaping, the
Village Arborist has reviewed the preliminary plaargl has concerns over access in
Phase | to Outlot 100 and stormwater basin B. ¢idmments have been provided to
the applicant who has not had a chance to rephjispoint. The Arborist also had
concern about the tree inventory being a littledated and suggested some staking of
certain trees. The arborist also suggested adaingg maintenance requirements to
the final landscape plan from the UDO and otheguage to the HOA declarations
regarding maintenance of common areas. The Villagdogist provided a
preliminary review and had a note about the natla@t guidelines. The Village
Ecologist provided the applicant with a checklialh information that will be
needed for final submittal.

Mrs. Tate stated the applicant submitted a renderirihe duplex style type
proposed. The duplexes are proposed to be coterudath brick and masonry on a
portion of the front elevation, LP Smart Siding atetorative accents. The homes
appear to be designed to have the look of detasingte-family homes with varying
roof peaks therefore helping to blend the duplexés the detached single-family
homes. The applicant has reviewed the Villagetsrmonotony requirements and the
UDO standards, including the recently adopted dugésign standards. There
appears to be about six models, all two-story withix of materials, two and three
car garage options, and a metal roof accent materi@ used on porches and
dormers.

The Village Engineer has provided two review letteith comments for the
proposed subdivision. The applicant has satisflethe comments from the first
review except stormwater management calculatiodsrdarmation on stormwater
detention and volume control, which will be addeskat Final Engineering. The
engineer has stated this information forthcomingcseptable since the proposed
Timber Run follows the design criteria from the\poeisly approved Vistancia
project. Both the stormwater facilities are eithemg deeded to the Village of the
HOA.

Mrs. Tate said the Fire Marshall mention the twarhgeparation needed between
duplex units or else the applicant may opt to ihstsidential sprinkler systems and
also hydrants that might be needed. The VillageRark District have been in
communication regarding the proposed park onsiteinil imber Run. After
reviewing the engineering drawings from Taylor Mewn the Park District is in
support of Option 1 which eliminates the retaimmall for the safety and cost along
with ongoing maintenance of a retaining wall.



In conclusion, the development is well designedsaering the constraints of the site
and natural ravine area. The proposal compliels miist requirements of the UDO
considering the challenges of the site. It mdetddt and dimensional standards of
the R-5A and many goals of the Lemont 2030 Comprgilie Plan. Staff is
recommending approval with six conditions which leseed in staff's report.

Commissioner McGleam asked if staff can clarify they are considering tonight.

Mrs. Tate said they considering the rezoning fro# f® R-5A, the Preliminary PUD
and the Preliminary Plat.

Commissioner McGleam stated there was mentionmdwing an existing
annexation agreement.

Mrs. Tate said they are requesting the annexatioNistancia to be rescinded but
that is a policy level and it will be discussedls Village Board.

Commissioner McGleam asked for staff to clarify tligerence of setbacks between
the R-4 and the R-5A zoning.

Mrs. Tate stated the R-4 requires side setback$ ¢det and R-5A is 10 feet. The
front and rear are the same which is 25 feet fapwit 30 feet in the rear. The R-4 lot
size is 12,500 sf with 90 feet wide and the R-5&5deet wide and 10,000 sf.

Commissioner McGleam said the original plan didinolude duplexes. He asked if
the developer was the one who initiated the chantfethe duplexes.

Mr. Herman, Community Development Manager stated ye

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Village had agreethe deeding of the detention
basins and to take liability with the retaining isal

Mrs. Tate said she spoke with the Village Engireeet he is okay with the plan as it
iS proposed.

Chairman Spinelli stated historically the Villagashaccepted detention basins in
more of a traditional configuration. He is concairihat if the Village does except
these with the retaining walls there is a lot abliity built into this that may have not
been considered. He asked staff if they knew wh@maximum length of a cul-de-
sac is in the code.

Mr. Herman said it is 300 feet.

Chairman Spinelli stated the cul-de-sac that iadp@resented is 2,600 feet. He
asked if there were any concerns with the wetlamdsaters of the U.S. for this



development that was part of the Vistancia projéte. stated he does not see
appropriate buffers on this plan.

Mrs. Tate stated she has not heard.

Chairman Spinelli asked if an updated traffic stuads being required since there is
only one entrance now.

Mrs. Tate said the Fire Marshall was okay withdlceess point off of Timberline
Drive and was told that there does not need tanhgpdated study.

Chairman Spinelli stated the Fire Marshall was dobking at access point and not
traffic volumes. He is surprised that this devet@nt, since it is different than the
2017 development, is not required to provide ditrafudy. He said it was indicated
the applicant is asking for relief from the ROW tihidbut are willing to maintain the
30 foot back-to-back. He asked if they are willtogorovide a utility easement along
the ROW line so that public utilities can fit.

Mrs. Tate said she had not heard any concern fhenvillage Engineer.

Commissioner McGleam said the 27 foot of pavem&gbing to reduce the parkway
by three feet on each side, which moves the frand getback closer to the street.

Chairman Spinelli stated that is correct. Theréhe less green space between the
sidewalk and curb for utilities. He asked in retgato the retaining walls they are on
private property. He is concerned with who is rtaiming them, whose liability are
they, and are there restrictive easements aro@md.thiHe asked if any of this was
discussed during TRC.

Mrs. Tate said it was not discussed.

Commissioner McGleam stated in the Engineer’'s comshere are two letters, one
from February 28 which lists all of his comments and then a follapletter dated
March 258" It says they only addressed items 8, 11 and b&ay with the

applicant’s response to 15. He asked what is iggodition to the rest of the
comments.

Mrs. Tate said they were all satisfied.

Commissioner McGleam stated he needs to staténthéd letters. He asked if the
Village Engineer accepted the grading on the detemonds.

Mrs. Tate stated the Village Engineer stated luk#s/ with the plan as it is being
proposed.



Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions from the Commission for
staff. None responded. He then asked the applioadome forward and make a
presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Vince Rosanova, attorney for the applicant, inticsdiihis team that was present this
evening. He thanked staff for such a comprehernmigsentation. He will elaborate
on a few questions that were brought up by the Cssion. Taylor Morrison is the
nation’s fifth largest home builder. They have ZibBive development communities
in nine states. In over the past four years tlasetbeen honored to be named as
America’s most trusted home builder by Lifestorysarch.

The overall density for the proposed Timber RundBtibion is 94 homes which is a
density of 1.4 homes per acre which there are 6&sacThe prior development came
in at 270 homes on 106 acres which is almost 2néelsgper acre. The lot sizes for
the single-family detached range from 10,000 s¥4@®00 sf with the average being
13,000 sf. The duplexes range from 12,500 sf t6A®Bsf with the average being at
14,500 sf. Their averages range 30%-50% greateniiinat is required in the R-5A
zoning district. Additionally, they are going teeet all the setback requirements, lot
requirements and lot width requirements.

Mr. Rosanova said in regards to the wetland ateasdid respect the wetland
buffers. The detention basin will be owned by H@A and they will prepare the
restrictive covenant ordinance with that. With pnevious approved Vistancia
subdivision minimum lot widths were approved atfé&ét and they are at 75 feet.
The permitted interior side yard setbacks were @t at 7.5 feet and they are at 10
feet. Rear yard setbacks were approved at 2&feethey are at 30 feet. The ROW
deviation was also approved for the previous subidir as well. It will leave 15 feet
on both sides for easements with water on oneaidesewer on the other. He
believes their engineer has accommodated those& poigrovements within those
easements. If the Village Engineer determinesatditional easements need be
required then they will be open to those requests.

Out of the total 69 acres that they are purchasinty, 42 acres of the site will be
developed. There are 28 acres along the west pydpee that will be donated to the
Village at no cost and the future use will be daieed by the Village as they see fit.
They feel the overall low density, the open spaeas the internal orientation, the
park site, and proximity to walking trails will prmle a unique and desirable housing.

Mr. Rosanova stated the retaining walls will be ediiand maintained by the HOA
along with the other open space in the commuriitiyey did not show a sidewalk
along Timberline Drive because their concern is3#doot of grade change along the
property line. They were not sure that it wouldab®afe condition and the Village
would want it after they reviewed the engineeringttis associated with it. There are
extensive sidewalks throughout the community aatl ihthe only area they are

10



proposing to not install a sidewalk. He thanked@eenmission for their time and
said they are available for any questions.

Chairman Spinelli asked if they are going to previdstrictive easements on the
retaining walls and will it be the responsibilitfthe HOA.

Mr. Rosanova stated yes.

Chairman Spinelli said the HOA should grant an md#ication to those property
owners so if anyone gets injured those propertyassvare indemnified.

Mr. Rosanova agreed.

Chairman Spinelli stated once the engineering digsvhave been done for those
walls any type of structural type of component etedbe protected by restrictive
easement. The Village ordinance requires catcimbas inlets every other lot
corner. He asked what was the reasoning for ptiegeall single-family and then
coming back with duplexes.

Mr. Rosanova said the Village’s 2030 Plan talksemeral areas about providing
various housing products to provide a diversithadising stock for residents at
different stages of life so families can live ios¢ proximity of each other. Taylor
Morrison did an outstanding job going back to tlen@and designing it to appeal to
multiple segments of Lemont’s population. Theyéachieved all this while still
maintaining the density at 1.4 per acre.

Chairman Spinelli stated the 1.4 per acre is inaydhe property that is being
donated to the Village.

Mr. Rosanova said yes. They are purchasing 6% acr@é donating 28 acres to the
Village and they should get credit for it.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Village had any gléor this property.

Mrs. Tate stated there are no plans for developethis time.

Commissioner Glomp said this is not an easy prggertevelop. He has a real
safety concern with the access entrance poins difficult as to where that entrance
can go, but he is concerned with safety.

Scott Barenbrugge, Taylor Morrison, stated that eaes thing that they felt was

important to maintain the exact alignment. Thegwithat any modification would
reopen that conversation.

11



Commissioner Glomp said he understands what thegaring, but when you
actually drive that and see what is happening thesedangerous. He is not sure if
there is another alternative, but it needs to b&dd at.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated it is a point well taken tsrxdhem it came down to
alternative analysis an optimizing a location viite Timberline frontage. This is the
highest possible point that they can build the commntrance to the development so
it gives the best advantage point in both directiomhey are managing the location
of the entrance with a retaining wall that drops/danto a detention basin, so they
are keeping it as high as possible.

Commissioner Glomp said if someone is coming olertill they are not stopping.
He appreciates what they are trying to do and fé&dsa nice development, but he
feels they need to look at this.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they would be oppasexscuring an updated
traffic study.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated they would not be opposed.

Commissioner Cunningham asked if they are in ageeémith all the conditions that
were presented by staff.

Mr. Barenbrugge said they had commented on thevsitassue. The only thing

they were questioning was the updated tree stddyee survey was done within the
last two to three years. It is incredible cumbersand expensive to check every tree
that is more than 4 inches. They are honoringstme margin around the edge of
development. They will be retagging trees thay dleeady know will be removed.
They would like to speak in greater lengths toat®orist to figure out a practical
solution to that problem.

Commissioner McGleam asked what is their positioou the sidewalk.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated they were looking for addai feedback from the Plan
Commission. They wanted to express their conceonitethe grading along
Timberline Drive. The closest sidewalk is at tbetheast corner of New Avenue and
Timberline Drive so the sidewalk would be going mene.

Commissioner McGleam asked if their concern wastrantability or safety once it
is built.

Mr. Barenbrugge said they can physically constitutiut does it create value for

residents, will it be utilized and is it a practisalution. They are not unwilling to
construct the sidewalk if that is what is wanted.

12



Commissioner Zolecki stated they had addressetiad the points that have been
asked during staff review which is appreciated. hde one comment however, when
talking about numbers there was a lot of preced&oece the Vistancia and in a lot of
ways as a benefit in comparison. The applicantishitave delivered a
comprehensive comparison if they are going to haegrecedence instead of making
them dig through 300 documents.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they could go overegkierior materials and where
are they at with masonry.

Mr. Barenbrugge said the architectural conceptswiasie provided are renderings of
similar product but not the exact product thatas developed for Timber Run.
With Lemont’s somewhat unique anti-monotony andiéectural standards they
want to customize the site for Timber Run. Thos@apare all in development and
they will be honoring predominant natural mater@isthe facade. They did express
an interest with LP Smart Side siding on the majarf the home, asphalt shingles,
accent masonry and they may utilize no more th&a itbgables of a specialty
siding.

Commissioner McGleam stated he is not hearing nabclut brick or stone.

Mr. Barenbrugge said over the years the large masfdarick or stone have become
less popular. They will be utilizing masonry asagaent material.

Commissioner McGleam asked staff if there was airement for masonry at least
on the front elevation.

Mrs. Tate stated no there is not.

Chairman Spinelli said he thought it had to be Wri&p of brick on the first floor and
the second floor had to be masonry on the front.

Mr. Herman stated he does not recall it being ewxabde, most of the standards for
some of the subdivisions were written into the P&ID’

Chairman Spinelli said since this is being compaoedistancia, there was a lot more
brick being proposed for that development thendkeigelopment.

Commissioner McGleam stated they debated oveditnanv they are not even
considering it.

Chairman Spinelli said he would recommend at ld@stront and two sides be brick.
There were discussions about key lots that hadve Full brick wrap.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated they will make larger exmarsof brick as an option
because there are still some buyers that want that.

13



Chairman Spinelli said prior it was never an optiout rather a requirement.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated the dialogue that they lhadewith staff has been focused
around bringing forward a conforming R-5A petititvat is a PUD only by virtue of
its size and to stick to the standards of the UDO.

Commissioner McGleam asked staff if they could lemkee what was approved for
Vistancia in regards to masonry.

Mrs. Tate said she will look it up while they canie.
Commissioner Zolecki asked what type of metal atcesrere they planning on using.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated it is a decorative metalyba would see over a covered
entry or porch. It is more expensive than regatphalt and it is unique. The intent
of the code is to not have the whole mass of tbélve metal and create a noise issue.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if he would be opposeaidre of a qualitative
requirement rather than a quantitative requirerf@nthat aspect.

Mr. Barenbrugge said they would be able to presemnte example photography of
where they utilized the material.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheestiions for the applicant from the
Commission. None responded. He then asked LamoRrom the Lemont Park
District if they wanted to make a comment.

Mr. Rizzo, Director of Parks and Recreation, stabey have a tentative agreement.
The Park District is concerned about the retainuadls because of safety and
maintenance. They hope with working with the Faidtrict’s architect and their
engineer they can design a park that will fit thevelopment without retaining walls.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone inatingience that wanted to make
comments or ask questions regarding this publicifga

Public Comment

Mark Huegelman, 14 Evergreen Court, said Lemoninging out of land that can be
developed for housing. He has not had a probletim past developments because
most of that land has been prairies. The sad@esi@bment was the Jewel at {27
and State because there was an oak grove thenedbatut down. The same
happened with the Target. The land that abutpraigerty is like an ancient forest.
The builders for Vistancia were smart and abandahegroject. There are several
reasons why this land should not be developeds itpristine land that sits next to
Township property which is already being preservgdemont. There are many

14



trees that are 100 of years old. Oak groves aneengstent these days and were once
a part of the vast savannah. Pepper’s Auto Carlel tmve cut the trees down on his
property but he did not. The deep gorge that tirtsugh this property is impossible
to develop. It was nice that they gave that prigpgerthe Village when it can’'t be
developed. There is a natural artisan springeaetid of the gorge where tan iron

rich water seeps through the rock.

Mr. Huegelman stated the schools will increasdasscsize due to the incoming
students for this development. The extra tax dolill not offset the cost of such a
dramatic increase. There will be a heavy burdeawrtaxing bodies in town. He
does not see how adding this development is goitiglp Lemont. An alternative
use for this land should be studied by the Villagée land can be used by the
Township to extend its holdings. An interpretiventer could be built so school
children can learn the rich natural history fostarea. Other communities use
natural resources to bring money into their towd @&e should be doing the same
thing here. Lemont has missed opportunities fdadihg onto land that would have
provided taxable income, examples are WoodridgeRPaios. He thanked the
Commission for their time.

Jim Connelly, 58 Timberline, said he was presentHe Vistancia hearings. He is
concerned about what will happen with the remair@gcres. He is worried that if
it gets developed with duplexes or villas, likestdncia was planning, it will increase
the density and traffic tremendously.

Chairman Spinelli stated there is no connectiom wie 28 acres and this
development. They are donating that propertyéoviiage and the Village can
decide at a later time what they want to do with it

Mr. Connelly said there is a stub in the developnfi@na connection so there is a
potential with the way they have it designed.

Mr. Herman stated there is a stub so if the propioes get developed to the west
then it should be connected. It is located betwexta 12 and 13. However, there are
no current plans at this time for that properfihis donated parcel is over 20 acres so
if it does get developed it would also have to beatbped as a Planned Unit
Development and go through the process.

Tim Stieber, 2 Timberline Court, said he likes tiaane for this subdivision and it is
much better than the name Vistancia. He is nobhagthis development, but he is
concerned that there is only one egress to thisldpment. There will be 200 extra
cars going up and down that hill. There are sé\mcgclists that travel that hill and
with all these cars it is a safety concern. Hase concerned that there is a stub
street and the property to the west can be develgper. He would like that stub
street closed off and taken out. He has not haaydne mention a price range for the
homes.

15



Chairman Spinelli stated the reason why they naskra developer how much they
plan on selling the property for is because thestiger is going to tell the Village
whatever it is they think they want to hear. ThaEcision is not based on home much
the homes will sell for but rather based on theeCaxd what is best for the
community.

Alan Brown, 5 Timberline Place, said this propasajoing to be in his backyard. He
asked if there will be a buffer between the twopety lines or will these properties
come right up to his.

Chairman Spinelli stated their property line startere his ends. There is a 30 foot
rear yard setback.

Mr. Brown said he is also concerned about theitradhfety and the one access point.
He also appreciates the comment about brick becdusethe houses in Timberline
are brick and not just an accent.

Sarah McDonald, 62 Timberline, stated her and &eilf loves this open land and
all the wildlife that is there. She is concerndaatwill happen to the wildlife and the
deer that are there. She thought the 28 acregvibeupreserved and is concerned
hearing that it does have the potential to get ldpesl. She hopes that the Village
will consider preserving that land.

Eric Hamilton, 55 Timberline, said he just purctihbées home this past November, so
he is their perspective buyer. He loves the mason his home. They moved from
Naperville in a community where there was a misiafjle-family and duplex homes.
Part of the reason why they left was because thexg Wooking for a more established
community of single-family homes. They watchedrtke mmunity change due to

the lack of restrictions from the HOA from incomeperties. He is concerned that
this could happen in this community. He would likeknow what the Village’s

policy is on income property. He does not see akat happens how it will

increase his property value on Timberline. Theitebe at least 188 cars everyday
going in/out of that street. That is a large voduaf cars and he does not believe that
there are 188 cars currently that go down Timberbnive. There are 8 different
intersections of car traffic, so he is not sure lbi intersection does not have a four
way stop to control traffic. He does not want éodoming up that hill and have to
stop for a stop sign on a snowy day. He is coremkrabout his children’s safety with
all the traffic. He is concerned about how thid affect the school system which
was another reason why he moved out to Lemonts Jifidivision can add an
additional 188 students to the district which sigaburden on our school district and
will increase class sizes. Again his concerngladraffic, safety, income property
and our schools.

Jeanette Daubaras, 13490 Derby Road, stated shendbkve near this subdivision

but she also suffers from the duplexes that aneggop. There are 40 duplexes on 9
acres going up by her and they weren’t going twipge 20 foot rear yard setbacks or

16



water retention. She understands what these résidee going to be facing. They
keep comparing this subdivision to Vistancia, Iat tsubdivision went away. They
should be starting from scratch. If there are 42sathere is no way this could be 1.4
units to an acre.

Chairman Spinelli stated if you take out the 28&aat will give you 2.3 units to an
acre. That does meet the R-5A zoning and the Cealnemsive Plan.

Ms. Daubaras asked if Taylor Morrison is purchashegproperty then who owns the
property.

Mr. Herman said ESBI Lemont, LLC and Timberline Klso

Ms. Daubaras stated this area is a natural ati#aoid has an lllinois Natural Area
Preservation Act and this area could be dedicatexha of those areas. She then
talked about how when the development by her wetite developer had taken all
the old trees down and didn’t save any on the ptgpd& here are approximately
2,000 trees on this property and they will be agtilown over half of them. There
will be no trees left and this is what concerns herees play an important part on our
weather and everyday lives so we need to proteatthThe donation that everyone
is talking about was supposed to go to the towngiupinstead it went to the Village.
She knows that all the Village wants is rooftopstey can get more tax dollars.

Dennis Doornbos, 26 Evergreen Place, said he iseroned that this is a 2,600 foot
cul-de-sac with one entrance. There is alreadyfetysconcern with bicyclist riding
on Timberline. He does not understand how theyganeg to do the detention pond.
The traffic study that was done for Vistancia was& during the summer and not
when schools were in session. With that traffiigtthe developer was going to pay
for a new left turn lane on New Avenue for Timbeeli He has not heard any
mention of this. At least with Vistancia there eéwo exits compared to only one.

Kathy Hendrickson stated she is also concernedtadadety. The children will have
to find a way to get to the Park District or th@®al. To use the open space is not
really safe for children walking alone. It is moonitored and there is no lighting
there. The sidewalk should not be optional andis¢e be put in. There should be
more lighting around that entrance for the subtvior a flashing light warning to
help with safety. That hill is dangerous and shédfinitely concerned about safety.
She is not sure what happened with the 28 acreg loenated to the open space
program. It is up to the owners as to what thegtva do with the land and at least it
is going to the Village. They are lucky to have 84 acres that are there and she
hopes more people will come out there. She hdpout of the 28 acres something
can go back to the residents. She thanked the @siom for voting in the past for
those high density developments. She feels thhey work together they can do a
better job overall with planning. Unfortunateliieyy don’t always have their say
especially with the trees. She agrees thoughM#hDaubaras that it was a tragedy

17



at 138" and Parker when they cleared all the trees orptiugterty. She asks that
they take a close look at the trees and save ag asapossible.

Jerry Reid, 72 Timberline, said he is concerneduitiee retaining wall and what will
happen if someone gets hurt. He is concerned soenedl try and sue the Village.

Dawn Witbrod, 16670 Sterling Drive, stated sheosaerned about property values
and the price of these homes. She drives downdrimke several times a day and
have slid down the hill in the winter with a big 8U She is concerned with the
amount of traffic on the road. She loves seeirgdder through there and is
concerned where they will go. They moved to tleador a reason and do not want
to see Lemont turn into Naperville or Orland andfer the open spaces. She agrees
that the homes need at least brick fronts and si8ée thanked the Commission and
Commissioner Glomp for his comments about safegstly, she read a list of
complaints about Taylor Morrison that she foundlminternet.

Ken Bylsma, 4 Timberline Court, said numerous titedas hiked in this area.
Along the ravine there are some enormous oak &egde is concerned that they
will have to be removed. He asked what the elewadrop was from a certain house
on Timberline to the top of the retaining wall.

Dan LeClaire, GreenTech Engineering, stated ibeu& 25 to 35 feet within 80 to 90
feet.

Mr. Bylsma said he is concerned about the sloghefoad and the safety.

Eric Schmidt, 47 Timberline, stated he wanted terate that this Commission did
not recommend Vistancia but the Village Board ggrave it. It amazes him that
there is so much in this packet from a plan th#trnse years old and was not
approved. Some of it is financial that they wanptit the road through the easiest
spot and not have to redo the plan. If they ch@me¢her area they might lose a lot
which will cost them money. The density is verghhand the Crain’s article that was
mentioned earlier is very misleading. Currently #ye group of 65 and older is the
biggest age group of people moving out of the Sigte now. He agrees that there
has not been any mention about the left turn lane.

There has been a lot of talk about the Village’snprehensive Plan. On page 63 of
the plan it was noted a concern of dispersed laggevelopment patterns over the
region and throughout the nation that lead to cagmsafor smart growth and transit
orientated development. He does not feel thatdénelopment fits either one of
those. In the introduction of the Comprehensiani talks about smart growth
from the 2002 Plan and cautioned against the pattescattered development. “The
development pattern that has evolved over thallesade and the specific
developments approved during that time frame didallow the guidance in that
Plan”. On page 63, the Plan notes that two plaasm@éed redevelopment of the
underutilized downtown properties for residentiadl@ommercial. In 2004, the

18



Village embarked on the public transit orientededegment that created 82 condos
near the Metra Station. Several of these lossestdlrin stages of vacancy or sale.
There are 23 retail store fronts that are vacaethA decade ago the Plan notes that
housing was considered an excellent investment whedit was easy and homes
could be purchased. Since 2008, “The regional Ingusiarket has changed
dramatically, foreclosures have hit the region keard many properties throughout
the region are still vacant and banked owned”. Hla@ notes that young people are
increasingly mobile and willing to move to new egiand new states for jobs. More
commercial companies are moving back to the cityaut of the suburbs so young
people will be not moving out here. Also, right @fithe plan, “Lemont’s existing
housing stock continues to age as availabilityesf inomes increases, reinvestment
in the older homes in town will remain importafithe Village should seek to
preserve communities existing housing stock.”

Mr. Schmidt stated on page 81, the plan talks apartguing mass transit
improvements particularly increased Metra servitbere has been little growth
there which has not been necessarily due to tbairal. On page 5, “Chicago
Metropolitan Agency for Planning calls for more gotear to where they live, more
parks and open space, more plentiful and cleantarnlagealthy air, and better quality
of life.” The plan suggests local solutions andurt of regional aspirations while
protecting and enhancing characteristics of Lentloait make the community. On
page 9 of the Natural Resources and Recreatioimsenbtes Lemont will be known
as a community with exceptional opportunities fatdmor recreation, defining
natural characteristics and quality open spacejastéship of natural resources
including air, land and water will be paramounha&althy and active living. This
development is planning on putting a road througd of Lemont’s defining
characteristics which is also a recreation youtddihg hill.

In the Natural Resources and Recreation sectigrage 43, “Lemont’s natural
features and topography have intrinsic value aodgilslnot be compromised by
development”. In addition, natural areas and estesys should be managed to
respect natural processes. Ample recreation a®&raihd connectivity between open
spaces contributes to high quality of life and sarpphealthy living. In regards to the
trees, he went through the Vistancia study thetilast. In the Comprehensive Plan it
states that trees improve the air quality and tilegé has taken several measures to
ensure that trees are taken into consideratiomgwidevelopment process and new
development proposals are required to submit a Freservation Plan. This
development wants to use a three year old plarthiegtdid not do. The Vistancia
Plan wanted to remove 3,100 trees out of 3,600thHieked the Commission for
their time.

Joseph Murray, 83 Timberline, said he understamdsdommission makes the
recommendation but he is concerned that the Villaijego ahead with the
subdivision. He asked if someone from the LemaniicP Department could come in
and give their opinion about the new intersectidfi.of the houses in Timberline
have brick and he hopes in order to preserve hogne value they will require brick

19



on these homes. He would recommend that theyduereel to do another tree study
even though they could come in and cut down thestbecause they own the land.
He also wants to make sure that the Village isliabte for the retaining wall.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elaewlanted to speak in regards to
this public hearing. None responded. He thereddthr motion to close the public
hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
close the public hearing for Case 19-03. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Mrs. Tate pulled up on the overhead the Key Lot Ntam the Vistancia project. It
showed certain homes that had to have brick anmgtsta all four sides and optional
on some lots.

Commissioner Zolecki stated he would have to g« vadis comment earlier that
the information that the applicant has providetherlack there of, and how it is
currently presented. They have been remindedhibgtare here to talk about the R-4
and R-5A, Preliminary PUD and Preliminary Plat.&sight the lot sizes would

meet the R-5A but it is not just a simply zoninguee and because it is a significant
development over 20 acres it is required to be B.PWith that signifacnce he feels
the applicant needs to demonstrate their due ditigeo quell the fears and concerns
of this Commission and the community. Some ofsdi@e points are here that were
here with Vistancia which includes safety. Thag diligence should include sight
lines on Timberline Drive. Another issue is densind this is an irregular parcel
with lots varying in sizes. Quality of materialasother point, which brick was an
issue with Vistancia and they made sure that eekiay lots had brick on all four
sides. Masonry can be subjective and it can brudg®d on how it can bring quality
but again there is no due diligence demonstratedatce that evaluation. Growth
was another point and there is not a direct tié Wit School Board and their plans.
There is no data presented to show how it wouldide to support this additional
growth. Lastly there is no market research showinyg this project would be
supportive by young people in the market. In tastphey have given the applicant
the opportunity to table the hearing and be abtoe back and address concerns.
He feels that there is not enough information preskthis evening.

Commissioner Cunningham said this is a completghasate project from Vistancia
and there shouldn’t be anything carried over. é#dsfthe tree preservation study
needs to be redone. There are certain thingsathanissing and he agrees with
Commissioner Zolecki.

20



Commissioner O’Connor stated there are a lot oh@peestions at this point.
Commissioner Plahm said his concern is traffic saiety.

Chairman Spinelli asked staff if there was anythimgsing with the submittal that
the ordinance requires for submittals. He saiddbenmission has mentioned of
wanting to see building elevations, materials, s@eey for the portion that they are
building on and traffic study.

Mr. Herman stated things involving traffic studyarket research, and economic
impact studies are listed buy not specifically fiegph  Staff can in reasonable
circumstances allow a waiver on them. This profes been compared to Vistancia
and whether that is appropriate or not, certainye¢ was some thought that went into
it. He is not sure if there would have been muwmnge with a tree preservation plan.

Mr. Barenbrugge said earlier he had mentionedttiet will follow-up with the
arborist to find a comparable solution to achidwedoal of obtaining current data.
They do not want to have to reshoot the areasntifigte cleared and developed.
What he would suggest is maybe within a 50 foap stentered on what is proposed
currently and evaluate that margin.

Commissioner McGleam clarified with staff that treee only proposing this survey
for the portion they are building on and not foe gortion they are dedicating.

Mrs. Tate stated that is correct.
Chairman Spinelli stated he is not sure what wagyrt@eed at this time.

Commissioner McGleam said if there is more infoiiorathat the Commission needs
before they can make a vote then it needs to Bbated as to what they are looking
for.

Commissioner Zolecki stated it is their respongiptb go through plot by plot to
determine what percentage of masonry should behmuse or ask the applicant to
come back and comply with some of the common peosslthat they had around
town and present it.

Mr. Barenbrugge said when it comes to specificsteel to the future architectural
submittal and building permit, he would ask Villagtaff to elaborate on how the
process is going to work moving forward with thei-anonotony standards and
architectural standards. At this point, their uistending is that the Village would
prefer that they build through the standard prooéssilizing the UDO that the
Village adopted. They were not advised to bringpelevel detail on architecture,
material standards, and planning at this pointeyTinderstood that at preliminary
level with conforming R-5A that they would be longiat the subdivision, the
development’s preliminary plans and the PUD basethe size of the property.

21



Commissioner Zolecki stated he would not consideclre elevations permit level
documents. He asked what is the fenestration,riahtarticulations for the home
sites that face the Timberline development.

Mr. Barenbrugge said it would end up being a mgause a lot of the structural
options that they offer are to the rear. The sdedigleven vary and they do not have
that material this evening to show the Commission.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if the standard rearatiens that face Timberline have
any masonry.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated in the most baseline cordigan he would say no.

Chairman Spinelli asked staff if this case is togeed, normally they would have
seen elevations or consider elevations at thiesifig gets passed through the
Village Board can they add building restrictiong=atal PUD or are they giving them
entitlements now by approving a Preliminary PUD.

Mr. Herman said he does not believe it can be adti&thal. It needs to be
addressed now or there has to be some languagd atiBeeliminary that it needs to
be addressed at Final. In regards to the briegkCiimmission can leave it open
ended stating that more brick needs to be adddtedCommission can be more
specific and put a number in there.

Chairman Spinelli stated doing an overlay of thiggmsal to the previous plan it is
comparatively identical and would want to see &3 lnan what was previously
required for Vistancia for brick.

Mr. Barenbrugge asked staff what the desired psoiseand whether or not the
intention going forward is to deviate from the stards in the UDO for architecture.

Mr. Herman said there are regulations in the UD@ iathe Plan Commission as part
of their recommendation for a PUD says they neesttosomething beyond what is
in the code then that is up to the Plan Commission.

Mr. Barenbrugge asked if staff can speak in regard®w this petition was
characterized as a PUD.

Mr. Herman stated the intent was to comply withRaBA zoning. The language in
the code makes it a PUD due to its size. The deeelhas been trying to comply
with the UDO.

Mr. Berry said it was heard from the Village Boamt the Commission that they

don’t want variations. They are not asking for &ayiations and if this was a 19 acre
subdivision it can go in by right with the zoninigamge. In terms of materials when

22



they talked about R-5A, if brick is something ttfay want to see on every home in
Lemont then it needs to be in the UDO. Developeed to know this when walking
in that it will be required.

Chairman Spinelli stated he would agree but thietbger is asking the Commission
to recommend concessions. Since he has beenso@dhnmission there has always
been brick and not brick accents so that is whaoissitting well with him.

Commissioner McGleam said he would agree with sheiff this is a perfect R-5A
development. Some of these lot sizes are consilyeabove the R-5A. The
developer did a good job fitting two types of protuwithin the R-5A.

Chairman Spinelli stated it sounds like the Comioissnight be split on their
decision. The applicant keeps referring back tatidin the UDO. He is not sure if
tabling this and requiring them to provide moreomnfiation would change anyone’s
vote. They can either ask the applicant if theytta table this or someone can
make a recommendation with conditions on itemsttiey have talked about.

Commissioner McGleam clarified that the furtheomhation they would be looking
for is masonry, traffic study, and detention basind retaining walls.

Commissioner Zolecki said they have not seen all fides of elevation and does not
feel that brick makes a home better. There areraésuccessful developments that
don’'t have masonry at all on them and this is stilyje. They are adhering to the
UDO but there are concessions being requestedtiathoning change. This is a
required PUD and so this is the process to disttigs® types of elements. They had
talked about using Vistancia as a comparison tcesointhe lot sizes and they do
range greatly. Overlaying these plans there arenamy that are the same. He asked
if they could compare the last development to derelopment.

Mr. Barenbrugge stated comparing gross densitynahahcluding the donation to the
Village, Timber Run has a net density of 2.23 v@ithunits on 42 acres and Vistancia
was at 2.6 on 106 acres.

Discussion continued in regards to what additi@eelditions the Commission would
want to add or should the hearing being tabled witine information being brought
back.

Chairman Spinelli asked the applicant if they wdrtee Commission to vote on this
tonight or if they wanted more time to gather fertmformation and come back and
present.

Mr. Barenbrugge said he would like the Commissmmdte on this tonight.

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion for recommaiiain.

23



Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees agpafvCase 19-03 Timber Run
Subdivision Rezoning, Preliminary PUD and Prelimyn@lat with the following
conditions:

1. Provide a full native planting maintenance and rtayimig plan with the Final
PUD along with any other required submittals lisiethe Village of Lemont
Native Planting Guidelines

2. Update the Tree Preservation and Removal Plandeasl Village Arborist
comments.

3. The developer should provide a sidewalk along Timee Drive to end at the
property line so if this area is ever to develapae complete pathway system is
in place. If anything, an escrow should be esthbli for a sidewalk in the area.

4. Metal roofing can be used as an accent materiatdmrot account for more than
15% of the total roof. LP Smart Siding can be usgedn exterior material.

5. Address the outstanding issues as noted by theu@imgsPlanner, Village

Arborist, Village Engineer, Village Ecologist andd-Marshall in their attached

comment letters.

Update the Plat with the correct amount of units.

Obtain a new traffic study.

Obtain an updated letter from the Village Enginseh the disposition of his

comments from his February 25, 2019 letter.

9. The responsibility for maintenance of the retainivegl and detention ponds will
be the responsibility of the HOA by declaratiorheThecessary easements an
indemnification must be provided for both retainimglls and the detention
ponds.

10.The previously approved masonry for Vistancia drekey lots, and the amount
of masonry, will apply to this proposed development

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: McGleam, Cunningham

Nays: O’Connor, Zolecki, Glomp, Plahm, Spinelli

Motion denied

© N

ACTION ITEMS

None

GENERAL DISCUSSION

Chairman Spinelli stated lllinois Bar and Grill'eetronic sign is not incompliance
again. The sign is currently flashing and spinninge asked if our Code
Enforcement Officer can look into this. He askithére was anything in the code

regarding a semi-trailer being parked on drivewal/gere was one sitting on a
driveway for two weeks and nothing was done.

24



VI.

VII.

Discussion continued in regards to Code Enforcement

Chairman Spinelli said there have been several-seicks sitting between Jewel and
Burger King.

Mr. Berry stated they will let the Police Departrh&now to patrol the area.

Commissioner McGleam asked if there was an up@afarding the easement with
Ruffled Feathers.

Mr. Berry said he has not heard anything at theti

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None

ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Glomp to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

25



